

Regular Monthly Meeting 10 a.m. Wednesday, June 28, 2023 Mayors' Council Conference Room Hagåtña, Guam

MINUTES

I. CALL TO ORDER: *President* Mayor Jesse L.G. Alig called the meeting to order at 10:10 a.m.

II. ROLL CALL:

ALIG, Jesse L.G. ALVAREZ, Dale E. **BAUTISTA, Jessie P.** BLAS, June U. CHARGUALAF, Anthony P. CRUZ, John A. **DELGADO**, Kevin AN V GOGUE, Jessy C. HOFMANN, Robert RDC V PACO, Rudy A. **RIVERA**, Louise C. SALAS, Frankie A. SAVARES, Melissa B. SUSUICO, Kevin J.T. TAITAGUE, Vicente S. TOVES, Albert M. QUENGA, Bill A. QUINATA, Johnny A. SANCHEZ, Anthony P. UNGACTA, Allan "Al" R.G.

O BENAVENTE, Peter John S.
O CHARGUALAF, Ernest T.
O FEJERAN, Christopher J.
O LEONES, Loreto V.
O IRIARTE, Rudy D.
R McDONALD, Paul M.

Mayor Mayor Vice Mayor Mayor Mayor Mayor Vice Mayor Mayor Mayor Mayor Mayor Mayor Mayor Mayor Mayor Vice Mayor Mayor Mayor Mayor Mayor

Vice Mayor Mayor Vice Mayor Vice Mayor Vice Mayor Mayor Piti Sånta Rita-Sumai Barrigada Barrigada Inalåhan Hagåtña Mangilao Chalan Pago-Ordot Sinajana M-T-M Tamuning Asan-Maina Dededo Hågat Talo'fo'fo' Tamuning Yona Humåtak Yigo Mangilao

Dededo Malesso' Hågat Yigo Sinajana Agana Heights

O = ABSENT * = LATE ** = OFF ISLAND R = REPRESENTATIVE V = VIRTUAL

Nineteen (19) members present at time of roll call. Quorum established.

> Angel R. Sablan Elaine RA Schaaf

Executive Director Recording Secretary

III. NATIONAL ANTHEM/GUAM HYMN

- IV. APPROVAL OF APRIL MINUTES Mayor Allan Ungacta made the motion to approve and seconded by Mayor June Blas. No discussions or objections. The motion carried.
- V. APPROVAL OF TREASURER'S REPORT MARCH/APRIL– Mayor June Blas made the motion to approve the reports and seconded by Mayor Robert Hofmann. No discussions or objections. The motion carried.

President stated there was a member who recommended increasing the hosting stipend by \$100. Mayor Vicente Taitague made the motion to approve the \$100 increase. Seconded by Mayor John Cruz. *President* wanted clarification from the *Treasurer* that the amount would now be \$550. The *Treasurer* concurred. No discussions or objections. The motion carried.

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

GREEN WASTE TRANSITION SITES UPDATE – All the village sites are closed except for Yigo, Talo'fo'fo', Sinajana, and Yona. Because there is no longer any security, FEMA is making this request. Spot checks after hours would be required of mayors and their staff. The EPA has already issued a purchase order to hire a private security firm to man these locations until the US Army Corps of Engineers takes over.

The cleanup and processing of these village sites is slated to start as soon as possible. The decision regarding whether to use the air curtain burner, chip, or mulch at the sites, as well as taking other factors into consideration, such as fire ants, the spread of the rhino beetle, and other invasive species, will be made once Landscape Management Systems (LMS), who was awarded a contract, receives the notice to proceed.

There is a suggestion to remove it from the village sites and take it to Layon Landfill where they're intending to do the air curtain burners if LMS does not begin the project within the villages. If it isn't finished by July 8th, the US Army Corps of Engineers will take over cleanup of the sites on that date and won't stop until all the sites have been restored to their pre-typhoon conditions. Direct residents to dispose of at Ypao Point in Tamuning.

PURCHASE ORDERS – The purchase orders for heavy equipment rental that have been put out by the Office of Civil Defense have been put on pause until a new formula for quantifying expenses can be approved by the GSA. GSA would determine how to issue the new purchase orders because they want to move from an hourly rental of equipment to a volume type of formula to calculate expenses. The current purchase orders are being allowed to continue until it is exhausted or when it expires on June 30.

If purchase orders, issued to mayors from our own accounts, haven't been exhausted or haven't met the \$25k limit for those vendors, mayors can still continue to use them for beautification projects.

CHAINSAWS – Confirmation from Michael Kern with FEMA at yesterday's meeting, out of the 50 (fifty) chainsaws, 28 (twenty-eight) are on their way. The Property Control Officer will issue to District offices. Mayors don't have to give the chainsaws back; they can keep them as property, according to information provided to MCOG.

IPS TIMESHEET – In accordance with Executive Order 2023-02, the initial batch has been delivered to Dept. of Administration payroll. It is now being processed and posted. However, the first batch should be paid fairly soon because they are awaiting the assignment of an account number. Joann informed the director that the second batch was almost complete and that she planned to submit everything by Monday.

FEMA PUBLIC ASSISTANCE APPLICANT BRIEFING – There is still time for districts to sign up. The primary reason for separate district applications, as opposed to a single MCOG application, is because some districts have not even registered, and as a result, will hold up the other districts and the MCOG application as a whole. ED thanked those Districts who registered last Friday. The Guam Recovery Office will assign an officer or a staff member to work with the mayors or their assigned POC to make sure that the application is complete and fully documented for reimbursement.

All of the funds in the mayors NAF accounts, including the \$100K received and the \$600K from the grant with the Guam Economic Development Authority (GEDA), are eligible for FEMA reimbursement, particularly the \$100K because almost all of it will be used for typhoon-related expenses. It is important that Districts keep documents of expenditures because those funds require a certifying officer. Mayors themselves certify it. Any expenses for personnel and for a force account for labor will be certified by ED on a single MCOG application. According to Chief of Staff Jon Calvo, a district that gets reimbursed would receive payment back into their NAF account. It's important to apply and complete the application.

NATIONAL DISLOCATED WORKER GRANT (NDWG) – \$ 10.2 million in funding through the National Dislocated Worker Grant (NDWG) to support Typhoon Mawar recovery efforts for beautification and cleanup and will be administered by the Department of Labor. Qualifications and details of the program will be released in the next few days. Temporary workers that qualify must be out in the field assisting with community cleanup.

FY24 BUDGET – The Public Hearing is tentatively scheduled for 9 am, Tuesday, July 11 at the Legislature Public Hearing Room. The Body will discuss the budget under the Operations-Maintenance-Beautification-Public Safety Programs (VOMBPS) today to see how the majority wants to move forward, according to ED. MCOG then will inform the Office of Finance and Budget of the breakdown that mayors prefer so that it can be included in the MCOG budget.

President stated, "I cannot understand why it's taking over a year and even if we have to wait for somebody, I kind of want to know who has the last document, right? Because if we're waiting on someone, we've been waiting for that someone for a year. Here's the problem, colleagues, we're very slow for whatever it is. We are slow to procure, so we won't use the money. That's ARPA. We still haven't received the second half of ARPA, and we're going to beg for the second half of ARPA, but we can't spend the money. That's our problem. We've talked about it over and over and over again, and I just feel like collectively we have to figure out how we're going to resolve this problem because it's not fair to the end user and the end user is our community, our people Because waiting one

year for vehicles without a clear cut answer is just unacceptable. I mean, and if you feel otherwise, please let me know. We're going to the senators in a couple of weeks and we're going to tell them we need this money, but yet we can't spend it. We can't spend it because of procurement issues. We can't spend it because someone wasn't trained properly for whatever reason and I just feel like discussing it sometimes is a moot subject. We've been talking about these vehicles ever since the governor gave us this ARPA and it's 2023. We're supposed to use this money this year. So if anyone has any ideas, I think that's the discussion that we need to have because I don't have all the solutions."

Inalåhan Mayor Chargualaf stated that a few meetings ago he gave a recommendation to temporarily hire two or three procurement folks just to come and help provide relief because of the infusion of big money into the council, it's been overwhelming and overtasking.

ED expressed that he recalled during one of the MCOG meetings, the president had inquired about the status of the administrative assistant positions MCOG had submitted to DOA for profiling. ED was aware that former Mayor Bob Lizama, who serves as the special assistant for municipal affairs, followed up with DOA. There is one qualified candidate. MCOG is currently trying to work with her to make sure she has all the needed documents to complete her application and put in her clearances.

ED stated, "As far as the procurement officers, we would have to get approval again from the people that are giving us the ARPA funds to see whether that is a possibility. I'm sure it is but we need to send in, again, names to the Dept. of Administration for profiling for that position. If you know of anybody that does this kind of work and is willing to work on a limited-term basis please send their application. I also want to mention that part of the ARPA money that is still available to us, whatever is left over from that half, \$2.8M of that is already being set aside for whatever happens in our budget dealing with our maintenance workers. So that is still an issue that has to be decided once we find out from the legislature what it is that we'll be getting in our personnel budget."

ED stated that he will work with the president and the other officers to come up with a plan on how to get things moving further along. He apologized regarding the vehicles because there was no bid award under MCOG, rather to wait until there was a bid award that was being issued to other agencies. That's how MCOG was able to get the SUVs sooner rather than later because MCOG rode on another agency's bid award, which was Guam Customs. This time it's going to be the fire depart.

By the end of next week, ED will present to the president a proposal outlining how to resolve these procurement bottlenecks.

Concerning the issue with hiring for procurement. Inalåhan Mayor Chargualaf gave a new suggestion for MCOG, to collaborate with DOA procurement staff by flexing in on Saturdays and Sundays. Determine the appropriate source to use to compensate them for any overtime or other arrangements.

Mayor Jessy Gogue stated that he doesn't think it's the mayors. The bottleneck is whoever's putting out these IFBs that MCOG is trying to ride another agency's invitation for bid or the queue of GSA processing IFBs for all of the line agencies is so overwhelming that MCOG is at the bottom of the pile of listing.

VEHICLES FOR DISTRICTS – Purchase orders are delayed due to all the requisitions being processed by GSA for typhoon recovery. SUVs have already been made available to nine districts. Six districts have chosen to purchase an SUV after seeing what the nine villages acquired and are currently being processed. Chalan Pago-Ordot is the only village opting for the 4x4 and that requisition is being processed. The remaining villages that opted for the 4x2 pickups, MCOG is awaiting the bid award, and we will ride on that award. It won't be awarded to the MCOG, it will be awarded to another agency but it'll be the same specs. So MCOG will use that bid award to get the 4x2s.

ISLANDWIDE ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANUP PROGRAM; RRF – The balance of \$500K had been released by Guam Environmental Protection Agency. The first issuance of purchase orders is for white goods and should be out next week. It'll only be to one vendor, Global Recycling because Pyramid is at capacity and cannot accept any more.

Districts that requested increases on abandoned vehicles, would also be receiving that depending on the availability of the funds and they've met their threshold or the limit as mandated by law, which is \$75K.

ETHICS TRAINING AND THE PROCUREMENT MODULE TRAINING – ED reminded council members to schedule their staff for these trainings. Everyone must comply and there is a timeframe. The procurement module training 1, 2, 3, and 4 when it becomes available by GCC, MCOG will send administrative assistants or whoever handles district accounts. ED stressed to make sure that when they attend, they complete the course because that money is not refundable and it doesn't come out from their account.

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS

- A. Boards and Commissions No Reports.
- B. Standing Committees No. Reports.

VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

LIBERATION FESTIVITIES UPDATE – *President* Alig stated that the island was still recovering from the storm. Having past meetings with the three branches of government, they all felt that the plans must still go on and have some kind of celebration or commemoration on liberation day.

MEMORIALS – The council president asked the chairperson, Mayor Kevin Susuico, whether he had any objections to having one ceremony rather than continuing with all 12. Mayor Susuico had no objection and said that having one would be ok because most municipalities aren't nearly at 100% yet. If the respective districts would like to hold their own solemn memorial, that would be ok.

QUEENS – Because raffle ticket sales had begun, council president recommended not to cancel and to proceed with it. He asked the co-chairperson, Mayor Louise Rivera her thoughts who said that the final counting was rescheduled until July 5 at the Bank of Guam, the coronation has been moved to Sunday, July 16, and there will be a Queen's committee meeting this afternoon at 3:00 PM. Because there was an amendment to the initial contract, the committee did reach out to those participating and had no objections according to the council president.

PARADE – President stated, "I do want to say that we must remember that there are still families out there who still do not have water, some water, and definitely power. As much as we see the percentage being over 90% restored for power, all of us can identify more than a few pocket areas. So in considering that there are still some of our people who are not 100% recovered and that we continue to do recovery work, I really feel that a parade this year is going to be too much for us to handle." He asked the chairperson, Mayor Robert Hofmann his thoughts.

Mayor Hofmann stated, "Just even reviewing the logistics for the areas, we've lost a lot of downed trees as well as things became unstable. Looking at the greenery, which most of us would use for parade floats, they're gone. The island is still healing in terms of the trees. A lot of what we needed to do, in talking with some of the personnel, some of the agencies, they also feel it would be insensitive for those that did lose homes. We still have 600 plus applicants in the RISEUP that are still there. We still have shelters open. So in light of that is the recommendation of my committee that we do not have a parade this year for those very reasons and that we focus our efforts still on this recovery and as we work with the disaster service workers, as we work with all the different nonprofits and groups, to kind of get everybody back to that 100% level." The Body had no objections.

Council president wanted all Districts to participate. Mayor Hofmann wanted the fireworks at 7:21 p.m. and sought assistance from GVB. Mayor had the idea that all Districts have a competition.

Council president gave the floor to Guam Visitors Bureau representative Nadine Leon Guerrero who announced that there is one veteran, who is 98 years old, coming to Guam and is currently working with his family.

With a show of hands, the majority of the Body had no objections and agreed to a oneday plan for the Liberation celebration on the 21st beginning with mass at the cathedral, the *Memorial* Ceremony at the Guam Museum outdoor stage, followed by a block party, fireworks display and a drone show at the Chamorro Village Festival Huts.

Mayor Susuico recommended utilizing the money in the Guam Island Fair account.

To acknowledge and express gratitude to Guam Telephone Authority for all they have provided to MCOG, the council president called for a fifteen-minute recess. There were no objections.

Council president called the meeting to order at 11:28 a.m.

Council president said the festival huts required a little painting because the Department of Parks & Recreation plans to renovate them extensively. The Body agreed to send staff and volunteers.

Mayor Susuico suggested that instead of a competition, there should at least be a showcase of items from your village. As long as Districts are present to participate, they can do whatever they want to promote your festival hut, sell items, or do both. He said he didn't want to do a competition.

Vice Mayor Kevin Delgado recalled logos were made for every district from last year's parade, it could be used to have a type of consistency that could be part of the front of each festival hut for placement and to be recognizable, and however, districts wish to decorate it.

ED said there are also district flags to use.

The question was posed by the council president: Should we provide the mayors with a little stipend to put together a display of some sort? Mayor Allan Ungacta made a motion to provide some type of stipend to the mayors for participation and to be used at the festival huts. Seconded by Vice Mayor Jessie Bautista. In discussion, the council president said the Body needed to decide on the total.

Mayor Ungacta made a motion to get at least \$500 for each district. Seconded by Mayor Melissa Savares. In discussion, Mayor Susuico stated, "We still have other core costs that will come out of the same account. So we need to be cautious of how we're going to be dispersing money. \$500 is a fair amount to put something together." To avoid affecting the revolving account, he was considering using the Guam Island Fair account. The council president called for the vote for a total of \$9,500. No further discussion or objections. The motion carried.

After the usual procurement process for the 79th Liberation celebrations, the Council president asked for a motion to allow the committee to use funds from the Guam Island Fair. Mayor Ungacta made the motion to utilize those funds for the additional support with the Liberation Memorial. Seconded by Mayor Savares. In discussion, Mayor Savares requested that it cover all 79th Liberation festivities rather than just Memorials. The council president stated 'all events.' No further discussion or objections. The motion carried.

KUAM proposed an interactive show simultaneously live streamed that each Village Mayor's office will have a designated two-minute spotlight segment exhibiting their gratitude for liberation at 6:30 p.m. Friday, July 21. With a show of hands, the Council president called for a vote if they wanted to entertain it. No hands raised.

Queen committee chair, Mayor Savares advised the Body to support colleagues who do have candidates by collecting books from them and selling them in their villages or among friends, if they had not already done so. The Guam Island Fair events are supported by ticket sales. Because of the island's ongoing typhoon recovery, the coronation will be scaled down and will take place on July 16.

ARPA AND ESF FUNDS –President Alig requested the members to think about doing their part and sending in their price quotes and requisitions. If members are already doing that and still not spending the money for some reason someone needs to know, whether it's the executive director or himself. But he strongly feels the Body must not miss this opportunity to use this money and for whatever else they need to get done. He said, "We have to press on and we have to figure out how we can spend this money the way we planned to spend it. If we sit on it, it's going to be a disaster for us. We already know that some of that money from the second half will be used to purchase computers and a database that will enable all of us to communicate in the same language throughout the 19 villages. The ESF, that's the same thing. If you haven't spent the money you need to, you need to go back to your plan and spend it based on your plan.

If you need to change your plan, you need to let the governor's office know so that they could reprogram that money.

Mayor Hoffman stated, "When they reduced the gas tax so that everyone benefitted from it, it shorted our accounting by around \$2.8 million, which would have paid for the cost of the community maintenance staff. In order to fill the shortfall in 2022 or 2021, we frontloaded from the second half leaving \$5M or so, which will work to set aside for the computers and the remaining balance is what we're open for discussion for dividing it. That's what we were talking about, that's why it went from \$8M down to \$5M something."

According to the Council president, he doesn't believe in having that discussion and he doesn't think it should come out of ARPA.

ED stated, "The \$2.8M from this fiscal year, we're still trying to JV it out of ARPA from the current money that we have, and it'll give you the outstanding balance. As I mentioned earlier another \$2.8M is dependent on what the legislature decides, whether they maintain our employees within the villages, then they'll take that \$2.8M again out of ARPA from the general fund. If they don't, those employees go to DPW, which we all know we didn't agree with. Therefore, we must set aside the \$2.8M in case we are asked to pay for the staff again rather than having it come out of the Guam Highway Fund."

Council president stated that it should not come from ARPA and doesn't recall having that discussion.

The transfer of the "iLearn" funds awarded to the 10 villages by the ESF was approved yesterday. That money has since been transferred from that program to any underfunded need mayors identify in their community. Mayors can start now by using the \$60,000 that is available according to ED.

In terms of allotments for beautification, allotments for vehicle repairs, and any other allotments used and still available for use, ED will provide a breakdown of how much ARPA money was used by each village.

RECYCLING REVOLVING FUND – Mayor Savares acknowledged that mayors have difficulties with tire disposal every year. Guahan Waste is the only vendor. Mayors have the same problem this fiscal year since their machine has broken down more often than it has worked. Mayors can't close out their purchase orders.

ED commented that when the service is only offered by one company on the island, mayors are at their mercy. Funds will be returned at the end of the current fiscal year.

FY2024 BUDGET PROPOSAL – Council president will ask for carryovers and no cap on the RRF. He queried ED why MCOG hadn't closed out the last two fiscal years with the RRF.

ED responded that for FY2021, all invoices have been paid, but because funds have not yet been deobligated, EPA doesn't consider it closed and MCOG can't use any of it because that work request had already expired.

Two villages have not finished all of their work for FY2022, and MCOG had learned through the vendor that they have not been paid since their invoices have not been turned in to MCOG. It's taking longer because DOA added another requirement; every purchase order needed an acknowledgment from the vendor that they are no longer going to submit any invoices towards that purchase order. MCOG is looking at deobligating over \$200K from FY2022 which was not used simply because some mayors didn't finish their purchase orders that were given to them. MCOG had asked GEPA to go ahead and deobligate on their side because we are no longer able to utilize those funds anyway.

Council president may include something in the budget that will support potential projects for hazard mitigation because every village has to be prepared for the next storm.

The Body would have a meeting in October to approve how to divide the budget if mayors don't agree on it to be included in the budget act. There was no consideration of the budget proposals that were sent to the Office of Finance and Budget the last few months.

IX. NEW BUSINESS

A. Typhoon Mawar

i. Recovery Efforts – ED stated that the disaster debris disposal and green waste site at Ypao Point will continue operations through August 3. No tires are accepted.

Chris Baggot, Deputy Infrastructure Branch Director for FEMA for this disaster, was recognized by the council president and given the floor.

- Time and Materials, Contracts Mayors have used time and materials, contracts for hiring trucks and drivers. That needs to stop. FEMA will not reimburse for them.
- Force Account If you have an employee or even a volunteer and a truck or a trailer or whatever, FEMA will reimburse. Mayors need to provide the name of the person who's driving the truck and how many hours they spent loading up, bringing it to the dump site, and unloading it. FEMA also needs to know about the equipment and size being used such as an F250 truck with a 20-foot trailer. That gets reimbursed on an hourly rate.

FEMA will pay vendors based on the volume of what they haul. ED stated that GSA is only concerned with the volume of debris being transported and dumped, regardless of where it is at.

Office of Civil Defense purchase orders have processed the request for reimbursements which they have already converted from the *Time and Materials*.

 Donated Resources (Volunteer hours) – Mayors are the beneficiaries of the donations, even when they come from outside sources such as community volunteers or other volunteer organizations such as the Red Cross. An equitable hourly rate of pay for there will be figured out and FEMA will give you up to the total amount of your cost share.

Council president asked the Body what to do with the typhoon relief donation check for \$20K from Tinian Mayor Edwin Aldan. Mayor Hofmann made the motion to divide equally among the 19 Districts and seconded by Mayor Ungacta. In discussion, Mayor Susuico suggested giving the remaining \$1,000—\$500 to Dededo and \$500 to Yigo. Mayor Hofmann amended the motion to divide equally to the 19 Districts and the remaining \$1K, \$500 to Dededo and \$500 to Yigo. Seconded by Mayor Ungacta. No further discussion or objections. The motion carried.

ii. Expenditures/Reimbursement – Council president stated to make sure to keep records especially if applying for reimbursement.

President thanked the many people that have come out to support the Mayors' Council of Guam and most specifically recognize GTA, the mayor of Tinian, the mayor of Saipan, and the commissioner of Corrections Anthony Torres. He expressed his gratitude to APL and Matson for transporting the CNMI contributions to Guam.

He specifically thanked Mr. Mark Baldyga for last night's show, which was for council members and their guests, as a way of showing his appreciation for the work mayors do in the communities.

He thanked JJ Ambrose, KFC, and Westin Resort for providing food for the volunteers, and the Bank of Guam, through the village mayors' offices, gave out some bags last week who worked with a few mayors in making sure it was taken care of.

X. ANNOUNCEMENTS

President reminded the Body to submit their quarterly reports on time, especially before that deadline because they will be in front of the legislature very shortly.

Mayor Susuico announced from Friday to Monday, two visiting vice mayors from Sablan and La Trinidad's sister municipalities of Tamuning and Dededo for La Trinidad, and Sablan for Hågat, will be visiting. The Mango Festival was postponed so they were unable to reschedule their flight.

ED announced Mr. Frank Aquino's funeral is tomorrow; and as a council, to approve using funds from the dues account to buy a wreath. Mayor Ungacta made a motion to buy a wreath for the funeral using the dues money. Seconded by Mayor Savares. In discussion, a large wreath and a state funeral, according to Mayor Savares, are due to him and to include a fitting tribute to this man who genuinely assisted all of the mayors. No further discussions or objections. The motion carried.

XI. ADJOURNMENT

President thanked Council members and adjourned the meeting at 12:48 p.m.

Attested by MAYOR LOUISE C. RIVERA

Council Executive Secretary 17th Mayors' Council of Guam Transcribed by:

ELAINE RA SCHAAF Transcriber MCOG – Administration

GUAM	Type of Meeting: [X] R	egular [] Specia	Louis
MAYORS / VICE MAYORS	DISTRICT	CONTACT NOS.	SIGNATURE
ALIG, Jesse L.G.	Piti	472-1232/33	A
ALVAREZ, Dale E.	Sånta Rita	565-2514/4337	wen
BAUTISTA, Jessie P.	Barrigada	734-3859/25/34/36	Val
BENAVENTE, Peter John S.	Dededo	632-5203/5019-637-9014	
BLAS, June U.	Barrigada	734-3859/25/34/36	bille
CHARGUALAF, Anthony P.	Inalåhan	475-2509-11	44-
CHARGUALAF, Ernest T.	Malesso'	828-8312/2941	
CRUZ, John A.	Hagåtña	477-8045/47	
DELGADO, Kevin AN	Mangilao	734-2163/5731	kin
FEJERAN, Christopher J.	Hågat	565-4330/35/36/2524	6/
GOGUE, Jessy C.	Chalan Pago-0rdot	472-8302/477-1333	U
HOFMANN, Robert RDC	Sinajana	472-6707/477-3323	A
RIARTE, Rudy D.	Sinajana	472-6707/477-3323	100
LEONES, Loreto V.	Yigo	653-9446/5248	
MCDONALD, Paul M.	Agana Hts.	472-6393/8285/6	
PACO, Rudy A.	Mongmong-Toto-Maite	477-6758/9090	
QUENGA, Bill A.	Yona	789-4798/0012/1525/6	France
QUINATA, Johnny A.	Humåtak	828-2940/8258	Alter
RIVERA, Louise C.	Tamuning-Tumon-Harmon	646-5211/8646	TA
SALAS, Frankie A.	Asan-Maina	472-6581/479-2726	The
SANCHEZ, Anthony P.	Yigo	653-9446/5248	7/ - /
SAVARES, Melissa B.	Dededo	632-5203/5019/637-9014	un
SUSUICO, Kevin J.T.	Hågat	565-4330/35/36/2524	AQ 0
TAITAGUE, Vicente S.	Talo'fo'fo'	789-1421/3262/4821 1	The
TOVES, Albert M.	Tamuning-Tumon-Harmon	646-5211/8646	The
JNGACTA, Allan R.G.	Mangilao	734-2163/5731	12
SABLAN, Angel R.		& Sala	The second secon
OFFICIAL REPRESENTATIVE	DISTRICT	s	IGNATURE
develore caraos	Aggine that	The	
John Acda	Dedet	GART	
		0	
GUESTS	AGENCY/ORG		CONTACT NO.
1541GAMI, Rumiko	Consulate General of Japan.		
Rayor Sampallus	Porcesse	<pre>/</pre>	
Kouph Shinohonall	Gove Office		473-1125
Thomas Benavente	CON DIN		473-1128 482-1440
Erikka llorente	<u>11</u>		102 (172
Dee Hernandez	GUB		646.5278
Nadine Ceon Guerrero	GVB	I	646.5278



page 2

Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 Time: 10:00 a.m.



Type of Meeting:

Regular [] Special

PLACE OF MEETING:

page 2		
GUESTS	AGENCY/ORGANIZATION	CONTACT NO.
Durid Castro	POST	
URIAH PEREZ	MCBCB	6717888422
Robert S. LIZAMA	GUV. OFF.	686-1113
Genle F. Torney	Son D. Son Nicolar	789.4400
Midul Perca	GA	41872312
Kersha Tartano	L GEA	6719805355
Veronica Camachu	6TA	915 962 6255
Maria Calvo	GTA	671864 8558
Joshua Martinez	GTA	671 4876147
Brian Muna	GTA	6714889256
CHRIS BAGGOT	FGMA	732 2066292
DINDENGRO	JA A	6879363
K. Certeza	GrA	4830129
S DE SAINDUATION	E GIA	488-4272
A- GAVIE	GTA	783-2877
18 min h Aguran	Sen. Sen Nicolas	(71-685-6229
Ursula tive	Jen. Jan (Vola)	01,000 - 1

C:Forms/AttendanceSheet/REV(SED/1.3.17/eras

MAYORS' COUNCIL OF GUAM



From:	Jessy Gogue <ocp.mayor@gmail.com></ocp.mayor@gmail.com>	CONT & CORD	
Sent:	Wednesday, June 28, 2023 9:10 AM	MAYORS' COUNCIL	
To:	Mayor Louise C. Rivera	OF GUAM	
Cc:	Mayors' Council of Guam - Admin.		
Subject: Attachments:	Fwd: SECOND NOTICE of MCOG Regular Monthly Mtg - Wednesday, Jun 28 at 10 a.m. image001.gif; APRIL MINUTES.pdf; TR March.pdf; TR April.pdf; MTG AGENDA.pdf		

Hafa Adai Mayor Rivera,

Please be advised that I will attend our Regular Council meeting via Zoom. Thank you.

Sincerely, Mayor Gogue

----- Forwarded message -----

From: MAYORS' COUNCIL OF GUAM <mcogadmin@teleguam.net>

Date: Mon, Jun 26, 2023 at 7:13 AM

Subject: SECOND NOTICE of MCOG Regular Monthly Mtg - Wednesday, Jun 28 at 10 a.m. To: Mayor Allan RG Ungacta <mayorallan.ungacta@yahoo.com>, Mayor Allan RG Ungacta <vicemayor_allan.ungacta@yahoo.com>, Mayor Anthony Chargualaf <inalahanmayor@gmail.com>, Mayor Anthony P. Sanchez <<u>ymayortony@gmail.com</u>>, Mayor Bill A. Quenga <<u>yonamayor2020@gmail.com</u>>, Mayor Dale E. Alvarez <srsmo.mayor@gmail.com>, Mayor Ernest T. Chargualaf <mayorernestc@yahoo.com>, Mayor Frankie A. Salas <asanmainamayor@gmail.com>, Mayor Jesse L.G. Alig <jesse.alig@pitiguam.com>, Mayor Jessy C. Gogue <ocp.mayor@gmail.com>, Mayor John A. Cruz <hagatnamayor2004@gmail.com>, Mayor Johnny A. Quinata <umatacmo@gmail.com>, Mayor June U. Blas <mayorbarrigada@gmail.com>, Mayor Kevin J.T. Susuico <agatmayor@yahoo.com>, Mayor Louise C. Rivera <mayorlcrivera.tatuha@gmail.com>, Mayor Melissa B. Savares <melissa.savares@gmail.com>, Mayor Paul M. McDonald <mayor.mcdonald671@gmail.com>, Mayor Robert RDC Hofmann <guammayor@gmail.com>, Mayor Rudy Paco <mtmmayorpaco17@gmail.com>, Mayor Vicente S. Taitague <<u>talofofomayor@gmail.com</u>>, Vice Mayor Albert M. Toves <<u>atoves.tatuha@gmail.com</u>>, Vice Mayor Christopher J. Fejeran < hagatvice.chrisfejeran@gmail.com>, Vice Mayor Jessie P. Bautista <jessie.bautista007@gmail.com>, Vice Mayor Kevin AN Delgado <mangilao.vicemayor@gmail.com>, Vice Mayor Loreto V. Leones <a>lloretoleones@gmail.com, Vice Mayor Peter John S. Benavente <onedededo@gmail.com, Vice Mayor Rudy D. Iriarte <rudyiriarte@gmail.com> Cc: Executive Director Angel R. Sablan < anghet@hotmail.com>, Robert Lizama MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS <robert.lizama@guam.gov>, Angie Jamanila AHT MC <angjamanila@yahoo.com>, Bernice Sarrosa SNJ AA <bulliez@gmail.com>, BMO MC <bulliez@gmail.com>, Carmen Aguigui AGT AA <caguigui.amo@gmail.com>, Celeste Hernandez A-M < celeste.asanmaina@gmail.com >, Christina J. Cruz TMO MC < jotrevdon@gmail.com >, Clarissa Borja MNG <a yuyu79@gmail.com>, Corina Meno MER MC <corinameno@gmail.com>, Daniel Rapolla -PIT <daniel.rapolla@pitiguam.com>, Dededo Mayor's Office Administration <dededo.astumbo@gmail.com>, Frances Reyes AGT <freyes.amo@gmail.com>, Genedine Ceraos AHT AA <gceraosreyes@gmail.com>, HUM AA <aa.umatacmo@gmail.com>, Jaeline M. Chargualaf INA AA <jchargualaf90@gmail.com>, Janelle Guzman SRS AA <srsmo.aa@gmail.com>, Jassen Guerrero TAL AA <jap.gurrero@gmail.com>, Jen Munoz MNG MC <jen.munoz86@gmail.com>, Johnathan J. R. Rosario TMO MC <jjnjrosario@gmail.com>, Judy Lujan BMO MC <barrigadaclerk@gmail.com>, Julie Posadas CPO AA <ocp.admassistant@gmail.com>, Kim Salas TAL MC <kimberly110591@gmail.com>, Kolinda Omwere YIG MC <yigomunicipalclerk@yahoo.com>, Larrisha Ann M.

MAYORS' COUNCIL OF GUAM

From: Sent: To: Subject: Mayor Louise C. Rivera <mayorlcrivera.tatuha@gmail.com> Wednesday, June 28, 2023 10:05 AM Mayors' Council of Guam - Admin. Fwd: REQUEST TO ATTEND MCOG REGULAR MONTHLY ZOOM MEETING

RECEIVED

------ Forwarded message ------From: Mayor Paul M. McDonald <<u>mayor.mcdonald671@gmail.com</u>> Date: Wed, Jun 28, 2023, 9:43 AM Subject: REQUEST TO ATTEND MCOG REGULAR MONTHLY ZOOM MEETING To: MCOG Vice President Mayor Louise C. Rivera <<u>mayorlcrivera.tatuha@gmail.com</u>> Cc: AHMO - Genny Ceraos <<u>gceraosreves@gmail.com</u>>

JUN 2 8 2023 MAYORS' COUNCIL

OF GUAM

Hafa Adai Mayor Rivera,

This is to inform you that my Administrative Assistant, Genedine Ceraos, will be attending today's MCOG Meeting via zoom on my behalf.

Should you have any questions, please contact me at (671)472-8285/6.

MAYOR PAUL M. MCDONALD

Municipality of Agana Heights, Guam P.O. Box 786, Hagatna, Guam 96932 184 Chalan Macajna, Agana Heights, Guam 96910 Telephone: (671) 472-8285/6 Facsimile: (671) 472-6124 E-Mail: <u>mayor.medonald671@gmail.com</u>